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ADMINI STRATIVE DATA

a, Nome and Number: Old Salem Church, Bullding No. 45.

b, Proposed Use: It Is planned to rehabliitate and restore the
exterior of this bullding generally to its Civil War appearance.

On the interior, work will be timited to repairs necessary fo

make the bullding safe and structurally sound, Use of the interior

in the immediate future Is not proposed.

¢, Justification: Rehablliitation and preservation are Imporiant
because this is the landmark on the Salem Church Battlefield
giving Its name to a decisive battle of the Chancellorsville
Campalgn of Generals Hooker and Lee, May 1863. I¥s use a8 a
fortress on the Confaderate line, as a field hospitel after the
battie, and as a soclo-religious institution In its community
for over a century are contributing factors. |t will serve

as an exhiblt-in-place on a stop of the Battiefield Tour and as

an initial Park stop on & heavily traveled Cast-West route,

d. Operation: Since Old Salem Church will be an exterior
restoration only, no provisions for operating fthe interior of

the bullding will be required.

e. Construction Activity: Project Includes installation

of an underground electrical service, Installation of

water lines, removal of later additions, peinting



of brickwork, repalr of plaster, romoval of metal roofing end
replacement with wood shingles, repalr or replacement #f exterior
woodwork, repair and/or replacement of wood flooring, Installation

of clectric outlets, termite treatment, painting.

Size of buliding: 38' - I" x 42' - 2%,

Construction Data: Walls-bricks; windows, doors, floors, trim,

roof framing, balconies, ceiling and stalrs-wood; roofing loriginal) -

wood shingles; Interior wall finish-plaster,

f. Cost sstimates:

Restoration & Rehabilitation 24,000
New pump, water lines and hose bibbs 400
Removal of overhead elsciric service and

instaltation of underground service 550
insfallation of audlio equipment |

s

Total construciion estimale (nof including PS&S
and contingencies) 25,100



Old Salem Church, West End (Front) and South Side

Photograph by Ralph Happel, Summer 1965



Form 10-411 UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR : DISTRIBUTION OF COPIES
(July 1965) NATIONAL PARK SERVICE o =

PROJECT CONSTRUCTION PROPOSAL

ne Copy &F TLP 6 | Southeast Region

-

. L. STATEMENT OF MANAGEMENT'S REQUIREMENTS, PROPOSED WORK, AND ITS RELATIONSHIP TO OTHER FACETS OF THE PARK
PROGRAM. (Provide detail data for ‘‘Management Information’’ on Form 10-41 la, Supplemental Sheet and attach.)

Rehabilitation and restoration of the extémior of historic Salem Church to its

Civil War appearance and repairs to fthe interior necessary to make sfructure

safe and sfructurally sound. Project includes installation of an underground
electrical service, installation of water lines, removal of later additions, Bt
pointing of brickwork, repair of plaster, removal of metal roofing and replacement
with wood shingles, repair or replacement of exterior woodwook, repair and/or
replacement of wood flooring and installation of electric outlets. ;

Size of bullding:y 38% < % x 42% & 24

Construction Data: Wal Is-bricks, wirdows, doors, floors, trim, roof framing,
balconies, ceiling and stairs-wood; roofing (original) - wood shingles; interior
wall finish-plaster. : '

Work proposed is necessary to interpret more completely this historic landmark
and the events of the Chancellorsville Campaign which took place here.

2. ADVANCE REQUIREMENTS DATA

LAND STATUS S MASTER PLAN NO. APPROVAL DATE
Government Owned — National Park Service NMP-FS 3004 10/25/55
\\/ PCP NUM_BERS OF: PREVIOUSLY COMPLETE PORTIONS INTERRELATED & DEPENDENT PROJECT PCP NUMBERS
None | N-60 R-60
INTE 2PRETIVE PROSPECTUS APPROVAL DATA DATE
First draft of Prospectus for Salem Church approved by SERO and
WASO; Final Prospectus to be forwarded by Park July 1966 -
WATER RIGHT NEEDS & STATUS
N.A.

RESEARCH NEEDS & sTATUS FRSP~H-|, Salem Church Historic Structure Project incomplete; His-
tforical Data, Part Il, completed;not typed;Architectural Data,Part || ,programmed FY 67.

OTHER

Master Plan Narrative, Chapters |, 2, and 3 completed; approved by SERO;
Master Plan Field Study scheduled l8&%. \%\'o.

3. RECOMMENDED BY SUPERINTENDENT (Signature & Date) 4. APPROVED BY REGIONAL DIRECTOR (Signature & Date)

0. F. Northington, Jr.

\

5. LOCATION WITHIN AREA OR TERMINI 6. BLDG. OR RT.# AND SEC.
‘Salem Church
7. REGION 8. PARK
Southeast Fredericksburg-Spotsylvania NMP 45
9. PROJECT
Rehabilitation of Salem Church Spotsylvania
N & ! | 2 (County)
Virginia 10. PCP INDEX NO.
(State) 8-43-2




HISTORICAL DATA

Old Salem Church (so called to distinguish it from the near-
by new house of worship) is the landmark of the Battle of Salem
Church, a phase of the Chanceliersviile Campaign, which campalgn
included several engagements, May 1663, Historians agree in call-
ing this dazzling series of engagements Lee's greatest achievement,
Chancel lorsville marked the high tide of the Confederacy (leading
to Confederate defeat at Gettysburg and subsequent ebb of fertune),
and the Salem Church battle was a cruclal part of the Chancellors~
ville Campaign. General Cadmus Wilcox's rearguard action at Salem
Church not only insured Lee's overall victory, It Indeed sgved the
Confederate army from possible defeat after initial success., Thus
this Salem fight, "one of the most brilllant and Important of the
minor affalrs of the war," is doubly significant in that it was an
especially noteworthy part of a spectacular whole.

The Battie of Salem Church raged around and within the bul id-
ing Itself, as well as over a field of some extent. After the battle,
the bullding was used as a Confederate hospital, where both Confed-
erate and Federal wounded were treated.

Aslde from Its primery (military) associations, the Salem
Church bullding is significant as an example of the mid-nineteenth
century brick structures bullf by the Baptists In this part of Vir-
ginla. These brick bulldings, much alike, replaced the earlier
modest frame houses used by the rural Virginia Baptists. Some w\cre
actual replacements and others, Iike Salem, housed new congregations.

The Baptists were firmly Intrenching in rurs! Virginia, where during



the century before they had at first been not tolerated and then
barely tolerated by the Church of Bngland. These midenineteenth
century churches are Just as %mrﬁnt to soclial and srchitectural
history as the cighfteenth century Anglican bgudlngs.

Many of the existing churches of the Sniiam period have been
altered, Fortunately, Salem has suffered no drastic alterations,
The bul lding needs repalr and stabliization, however, regardless
of restoration. As to restoration to its 1863 appearance, a number
of detalls require attention, such as restoration of the non-historic
tand now deteriorated) mein floor to a period floor; removal of ralsed

modern floors in galleries, bencath which additions the original

- floors exist unimpalred; removal of non-historic rallings on galleries;

removal of Inside steps ond door to slaves' stalr well; removal of
non-histeric flue through roof and replacement of peried wood shingles
on reef, now tin ; removal of cement platform across front and replace-

ment of simple stone stoops, one at cach of the two doors.

A brief 1ist of changes with dates Is as follows:

1883 Tie-rods Installed to strengthen walls.

cl894 Old main floor repleced.

1908 New shinglcs put on roof. As far as appearance
was concernad, this would silll be the historic
roof .

1929 Church wired for clectricity.

1929 Tin roof put on.

1934 and tater Foundation planfing.



193435 Cement platform bullt acress front.

1947 Galleries remodelled and inside door Installed
to old slaves® stalr well,

1953 Nen-historic flue added near peak through west
end of north side of roeof.

The west gable end (front) of this brick structure Is wood
{horizona! weatherboarding) from saves line fo peak. This was once
vertical boerd-and-batten, Histerical evidence has not been adduced
te prove one way or another that this end was formerly all brick,
if architectural evidence can not prove that it ever was all brick,
board-and-batten will remain the oldest form known. |t was definitely
board-and-batten as carly as the 1880C's,

The Salem congregation was established in 1843, apparently as 2
convenience to the growing Baptist conmunion of the nelghborhoed,
forced before the establishment of Salem to travel to comparatively
distant houses of worship. Ccclesiastical records show 1844 as the
bul lding date.

The congregation bullt a new church on adjoining property, pur-
chased for that purpose, in the 1950's. In 1961, the congregafion
donsted the old church and |,06 acres of land to the United States
to be o part of the Fredericksburg and Spotsylvania National Rilitery
Park., The church cemetery, between the land donated and the grounds
of the new church, was retained by the congregation, as well as access

to the graveyard across the land donafed. >

ARCHITECTURAL DATA

Old Salem Church is a rectanguler gable-roofed brick structure,
approximately 42 feet long and 38 feet wide. The west gable end,

q



with Ifs two doors, is the froni and faces Va. 639, & side road
running inte Va. 3, four miles west of Fredericksburg. The nerth
side of the property is bounded by Va. 3. |t should be noted that
the State of Virginla has a rather wide right-ef-way on both roads.

The bul iding Is two-storied, f.e., It has a main floor and
galleries, There are six shuttered windows to a side, three up
and three down. There are, as mentioned, two front doors (west
end), The east end (pulplt end) has one opening, a middie window.
The south side has a door leading to the stalr well to the gallery.

Two historic chimneys are within the wall on elther side of
the peak at the cast end. The top of the west gable end, as men-
tioned above, is wood, all the rest of the church belng brick.

it mlght be noted that a similar building, Valler's Baptist
Church, bulit shortly after the Civii War, also has wood for the
top of Its front gable end. The old parts of Waller's, Massaponax
and Old Hebron, all Baptist churches of the perled In Spetsyivania
County, are generally similar to Salem. These structures vary among
themseives In similarity and difference of details. Waller's and
Hassaponax have additions, Old Hebron, though apparently completely
unchanged, Is now derelict; a new Hebron Church almest touches it.

The gallery arrangement at Salem Is unusua! in that there are
two gelleries but no connecting cross gallery, Each gallery, thus,
has its own stalr weil. The south gallery was once accessidble only
from the outside (door at west corner of south wail) and was fer/
the use of the slave members.

The condition of the structure is basicaily good. In addition

to aspects of rehabiiitation and restoration touched on above, it



might be mentioned that the plaster is in bad shape. The bricks
should be treated with clear waterproofing and other measures
taken to insure interior dryness and protection of new plaster.
Note, however, that scars on ihe exterior, perticularly the east
end, are projectilc marks and thus important reminders of the battie.
Not only the scars but old patches should be retained. The tie-rods
with thelr star-shaped ends, though put in after the war, should be
retained as historical parts of the buliding,

It Is estimated that architectural research and Investigation

on this project would cest about $2000.
ARCHEOLOGI CAL DATA
Archeological work not required,
LANDSCAPE DATA

Basically, the ground immediately around the Old Salem bullding
is unchanged, but the locations and grades of the roads which bound
the property on two sides have been changed since the Civil war,
(The old Orenge Turnplke, now Va. 3, bounds the property on the
north, and Va. 639 bounds It on the west.) Up unti! about 1960,
Va. 639 ran just west of the church. Now It is some distance west
and closer te its Civil War perlod position. One postwar position
was cast of the church, Va. 3 was sbout in its Civil War bed unti}
the dual-laning work of the cerly 1960's,

The church cemetery, bounding park property on the east, is
not historie. An historic leg scheol house which, like the old

church,was used as a cltadel during the battie) disappearsd many



years ago. The school house stood within the area now comprising
the cemefery. Since that area is not park property, this Informa-
tion is given as part of the record, but not for any landscaping
or other plan.

The Confederates dug an ecarthwork on May 4 on a north-south
line just east of the church., This no longer exists., |f It existed,
It would be valuable as remelns. |f should not be reconstructed,
however, because It was not there on May 3, the day of the Unlon
attack, when the Confederate's maln line was west of the church,

At the time of the battie, an oak grove surrounded the church.
A few descendant oaks exist and should be preserved except where a
removal might enhance anofhar specimen, Judicious removal might
help create an unobirusive parking area south of the church.

Foundation planting (now rampant) exists around the church,
and vy grows on the walis. MNelther planting nor Ivy is histeric,

Further landscape research as such is not needed, since all
aval lable historical data will be cited in Part Il, the definitive
historical report.

FURNISHINGS AND EXHIBITS DATA

No historic furnishings are In the structure. The pulplt Is
belleved to be old, but Is conslidered part of the bul lding.

Since the Interior will not be exhiblted, a Furnishing Plan has
not been drafted, |f it Is declided In the future te furnish and
exhibit the Interior, the park can prepare all of the required sections,
it is estimated furniture and furnishings will cost sbout $5,000

{not Including PS4S and contingencles),
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